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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

February 15, 2012

Honorable Board of City Commissioners
City of Bixby
Bixby, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, (City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An auditincludes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Bixby, Okiahoma, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 15, 2012 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resuits
of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 7 through 14 and budgetary comparison information on page 55 and the notes on page 55
through 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, aithough not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

5

Members of American institute and Oklahoma Society of CPA’s and Inpact Americas, an International Network of independent accounting firms
Serving Our Clients Since 1960



City of Bixby
February 15, 2012

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Bixby's financial statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is
presented for additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial
statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. in our opinion, the information is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

@&MWW,W

CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Bixby's financial performance provides an overview of the
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter and the City's financial statements, which follow.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Bixby (the "City")
and its component units using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statements No. 14, 34 and
39. Included in this report are government-wide statements for each of two categories of activities -
governmental and business-type.

The government-wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the City from the
economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental
activities and business type activities separately and combined. These statements include all assets of the
City (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt).

About the City

The City of Bixby, Oklahoma (Bixby or the City) was admitted as a township in 1906. The City is under
a Home Rule Charter and is ruled by a "Council-Manager Government" as designated under Title 11 of
the Oklahoma Statutes. As a charter city, the citizens from each of the City's five wards elect a council
member to represent their respective ward. At the first meeting after the time prescribed for the beginning
of the terms of newly elected council members, the council elects from its membership a mayor and vice-
mayor. The current population of the City is approximately 21,000.

The City provides the following services: Public safety; streets and roads; water and wastewater services;
culture-recreation; public improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative services.

The City’s Financial Reporting Entity

This annual report includes all activities for which the City of Bixby City Council is fiscally responsible.
These activities, defined as the City's financial reporting entity, are operated within separate legal entities
that make up the primary government.

The City's financial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of Bixby) and the
blended component units as follows:

» The City of Bixby - that operates the public safety; streets and roads; culture recreation; public
improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative services.

¢ The Bixby Public Works Authority - that operates the water and sewer services of the City.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City's financial condition
and changes therein at two distinct levels:
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As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

¢ The City as A Whole {a government-wide presentation)
e The City's Funds (a presentation of the City's major and aggregate non-major funds)

The City's various government-wide and fund financial statements are presented throughout this
annual report and are accompanied by:

¢ Management's Discussion and Analysis - provides useful analysis that facilitates a better
understanding of the City's financial condition and changes therein.

* Footnotes - elaborates on the City's accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements and further explain financial statement elements.

* Supplemental Schedules - provides additional information about specified elements of the
financial statements, such as budgetary comparison information.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City's finances is, "Has the City's overall financial
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?". The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting. All of the current year's revenues and expenditures are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them from the prior year. You can think
of the City's net assets - the difference between assets and liabilitics - as one way to measure the City's
financial condition, or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator
of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or remaining steady. However, you must
consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City's property tax base, the condition of the
City's roads, and the quality of services to assess the overall health of the City.

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the city
into two kinds of activities:

¢ Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police,
fire, general administration, streets, and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, and fines finance most
of these activities,

* Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of certain services
it provides. The city's water and sewer service are reported here.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the city
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However,
management establishes many other funds to help,it control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money.
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Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds arc reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's
programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the
Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental
Fund financial statement,

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. In fact, the City's
enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more details and additional information, such as cash flows.

The City as a Whole

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
For the year ended June 30, 2011, net assets were as follows:

TABLE1
NET ASSETS (In Thousands)

Governmental Y lnc. Business-Type Y Ine. % Inc.
Activities (Dec.) Activities (Dec) Total (Dec.)
2011 2010 2011 000 200 2010

Current assets $ 26,937 $ 18,228 EER $  9nIn $ £.046 212% 13 36,773 S 26,274 4%

Capitat assers, net 35346 4% 783 3% 42,207 40,437 5% 97,6352 49,212 Goy

Total assets £2,283 67,013 230, 52,143 48,493 % 134,420 i15.506 16%,

Current liahilities 3887 2.049 17% 121y 1206 STl 4778 4,235 1%

Non-current liabilities 27,149 19,235 41% 9,551 9,782 PR 36,700 24017 26%

Total liabilities 2,706 22,284 L 10,769 11,088 -3% 41,473 33372 24%

Net assets

Invested in capilal assets.

nel of related debt 30327 3B 230 A2 40K 3887 A E RN 61778 142

Restricied * 8880 68145 L1 AN 5846 2782 kLN 14,813 12,367 18%

Unrestricted 33610 6,023 -4y, 020 736 0% 6,381 6,744 -6%

Total net assets 3 51577 S 44,729 15% $ 41,374 s 37405 1% ] G951 $ 82,134 139,

*Pricr year net assets reclassified to conformw ith GASB 54 w hich w as implented in current year.
The above numbers reflect an increase in net assets of 15% for governmental activities and an increase of
11% for business type activities. Overall, the net assets for both governmental and business-type
activities increased 13% over last fiscal year.

Governmental activities assets increased approximately $15.3 million or 23% due mainly to the proceeds

of the 2011 Bond Fund. Liabilities increased by approximately $8.4 million or 38% due to the issuance
of the 2011 general obligation bonds.

10
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Business-type activities assets increased for the current fiscal year by $3.7 million or 8% due to an
increase in capital assets. Liabilities decreased by approximately $319,000 or 3% due to the regular
retirement of long-term debt.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, net assets of the primary government changed as follows;:

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (in Thousands)

Governmental Y% Inc. Business-Type % Inc, Y Ing.
Aglivities (Dec.) Activities i{Dec) Total Pect
2 2o 2014 a0 2611 g

Revenues — I
Charges for service b 1,712 § 2029 -16%, $ 6596 § s0w2 i b3 K30y 5 121 17%
Operating grants and contrbulions 627 443 7% - - 627 493 274
Capital grants and contributions 5,163 1497 44% 1.4%4 1815 B LA 6.647 532 25m
Tanes 11,744 1343 4% - - - 10,746 14,343 4%
Intergovermmental revenue 125 14 T - 125 114 1t
Investment income ({1 112 B 4t 83 -2 147 (BN S2h
M iscellaneous I, 349 ANT 2444, [l 44 T 1,499 471 21Nt

Total revenues 19,530 10995 17% 8270 7,044 17% 28,100 24039 17,
Expenses
General govermnment 252 2,049 ST - - - 2520 GLT ST
Public safety 49460 5054 -1 - - - 4.996 5054 NN
Streets 1.ov2 2,131 -2 - - - 1,642 2.131 -21%
Culture, parks and recreation %31 h5Y 26%, - - - %31 659 26"
Cemetery 142 129 (TN - . - 142 129 e,
Economic development 127 252 -5ik - - - 127 282 -50%,
Interest on long-temm debt K10 912 -12% - - - 10 912 -12%
Water - - - 4637 .06 13% 4.637 4,186 13%
WWastoew aler - - - 1.52% 1.464 4% 1,52% 1,464 4,

Taotal expenses [RNAL TL%46 B, H105 5560 H% 11,253 17,406 1%

Fxcess (deficiency | before

Irangfery %712 S.149 B 2,145 1.4%4 42% HLKLT 6633 63%
Transfers {1864 (L4610 -2t 1.x64 1461 2R%
Change in net assets &, K48 RN E T B Juhy 2.945 35% 10817 H,013 H3%
Beginning net assets 44,724 41,041 Y 374115 34, 46400 9% B2, 134 75,54 Yo%
Ending net assets § 51,577 $ 44,729 5%, S 41374 8 37408 I1% § 92951 & H2134 13%
— S—

Governmental Activities miscellaneous revenue increased approximately $962,000 or 249% due to an
allocation from the City of Tulsa for the Fry Creek maintenance agreement. Capital grants and
contributions increased approximately $1.7 million or 48% due to a $1.2 million contribution from Tulsa
County for streets.

Business-type Activities charges for services increased approximately $1.5 million or 30% due to a
record heat wave, as well as a rate increase in water revenue in 2011, The rate increase was due to an
increase in rates from the City’s water provider. Included in expenses of Business-type Activities of the
Water Department are expenses related to debt service requirements which are funded with Sales Tax
Revenues apportioned to the fund. The taxes are classified as general revenue on the Statement of
Activities.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given, Of

particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,

Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with

revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The
11



CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the
City's taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is
self-financing through fees and grants. Some of the individual line item revenues reported for each
function are:

General Government: Permits and licenses, inspections fees, operating grants
Public Safety: Fines and forfeitures, E-911, rural fire dues, grants
Other public services: Operating grants

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are
classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

TABLE 3
Net Revenue {Expense) of Governmental Activities
{In Thousands)

Net Revenue

Total Expense “a Inc, (Expense} o e,
of Services (Dec.) of Services {Dec.)
2t 2010 2001 2010
{reneral povernment % 2520 b 2699 Brih $(1.06Ty % [EREY] 22T
Public safety 4.996 3054 -t t3.667) (RS 4P
Strects 1.692 210 S0 2779 Loy 1744%
Culture, parks and recreation 331 639 26% (6873) 1623 B0y
Cemetery 142 129 1{1°s 3 14) SO0,
Economic development 127 282 =M% (1270 {252) S0t
Interest on lonp-term debt S0 gy -8y (810) {u22) 130,
Total 3 1LLIS % 11340 0% $tield § (3820) kLA
— —

Business-type Activities

The business-type activities had an increase in net assets of $3,969,622,

TABLE 4
Net Revenue (Expense) of Business-Type Activities
{In Thousands}
Net Revenune

Total Expense % Inc. (Expense) % Ine.
of Services Dec. of Services Dec.
2011 2010 2011 2010
Water $ 4.037 $ 4.096 13%  §$1.303 $ 1.006 Kl
Wastewater 1.328 1,464 4% 610 341 T5%
Total $ 6,165 $ 5560 % $1915 $1.347 42%

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
For the year ended June 30, 2011, the General Fund reported actual budgetary basis revenues over final

estimates by $407,611 or a 7% positive variance. General Fund actual expenditures were under final
appropriations by about $222,767 or a 4% positive variance.

12
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2011, the City has $97.7 million invested in capital assets including police and fire
equipment, buildings, water and sewer lines, roads, and park facilities.

TABLE 5
Capital Assets
(In Thousands)
(Net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmenital Business-Type
Activitics Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 201 2011 2010
Land ] 10,287 § 9241 b3 489 $ 489 $ 10,776 § 9.730
Buildings and improvements 3373 3,363 173 826 4,046 4189
M achinery. furniture and equipment 3.462 3,358 298 221 31.760 157%
Infrastructure 26.367 24.560 39.837 37.118 66,204 61,678
(Construction in progress 11.957 8.263 910 1.7%3 12.867 10.056
Totals £ 55046 5 48785 § 42307 40447 $ 97.653 % 89,232

See note 4 for additional details.
Debt Administration

At year-end, the City has $38.9 million in outstanding notes, bonds, and capital leases. Additionally, the
City had $1.3 million in accrued compensated absences and utility deposits. The increase in long-term
debt is attributed to the issuance of 2011 general obligation bonds.

TABLE 6
Long-Term Debt
(In Thousands)

Total

Gavernmental Business-Type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2010-2011
CGeneral obligation bonds 13 28,250 s 20200 5 - $ - $ 28.250 $ 20,260 14,90,
Capital leases payable 535 877 - - 555 877 -36.7%
Revenue bonds payable - - 4985 6.530 5.985 6,510 =830,
Noles payable - - 3,094 13828 4,094 1825 7.00%
Deposits subjeet 1o refund - - 468 67 468 467 H2%
Accrued compensated absences 703 684 109 g1 812 773 4.8%
Totals 3 29508 § 21,761 $ 10,656 % 10,913 $ 40,164 $ 12,674 22.9%

See note 5 for additional details.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

Just like in municipalities across the nation (but to a much lesser degree), the unprecedented national
recession caused a significant decline of 8.7% in fiscal 2009/2010 in the City of Bixby’s primary revenue
source, the municipal sales tax. Fortunately, strong fiscal management practices enabled the City to

13
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balance its budget that year and in subsequent ones without raising taxes, significantly reducing basic
services and/or implementing widespread layoffs or employee furloughs. In fiscal 2010/2011, the City's
sales tax revenues stabilized and began to recover, coming in 3.6% greater than prior year. For the
forthcoming fiscal 2011/2012 period, budgeted sales tax revenues were forecast to continue to experience
a similar level of growth of 3.5% relative to the prior year budget. Expenses for 2011/2012 were likewise
budgeted to grow by 3.5% over prior year budget.

The 201172012 budget is essentially a maintenance level or “steady state™ budget. in which revenue
growth was consumed by increases in fixed costs such as insurance, workers compensation premiums,
and energy costs. While revenue levels were sufficient to enable basic service levels to be preserved, they
did not provide for general increases in employee compensation, numbers of employee, or other
expanded service levels. Additional continued sales tax growth will be necessary for revenues to return
to pre-recession levels, which is expected to occur in the 2012/2013 period.

While operating budgets will remain fairly austere in the near future, there are a number of significant
capital improvement projects slated to be completed or initiated in fiscal 2011/2012 and following years,
funded largely by the 2006 and 2011 General Obligation bond issues, various grants, and long-term low
interest loans. These include major street improvements, expansion of the Police Department quarters
within City Hall, sewer system improvements, and completion of master plan projects at the award-
winning Bentley Youth Sports Complex. Moreover, the long term outlock for the City of Bixby remains
positive, as long term economic development initiatives take root and the national economy recovers.

City of Bixby officials aggressively market the community to potential retailers in an effort to expand the
number of shopping and dining options and boost municipal operating revenues. Bixby is known as a
friendly, attractive and rewarding place to which to relocate and prosper. Opportunity for new business
activity abounds in Bixby, which features some of the highest population growth trends and most
favorable income and educational attainment demographics found in the state of Oklahoma, as well as a
documented retail trade gap in excess of $1.18 billon. This market potential, along with Bixby's high
quality of schools, status as the safest community in the state for cities its size, with a stable, progressive
government, a dynamic chamber of commerce, and very attractive quality of life, continue to make Bixby
a top choice for people and businesses looking to relocate to the Tulsa metro area in NE Oklahoma.

Official 2010 Census results revealed Bixby was indeed one of the fastest growing cities in Oklahoma
this past decade, and second fastest growing in the Tulsa metro region, having grown by 57%. At just
under 21,000 people in the 2010 Census, Bixby is now the 20th largest city in the state, up from 32nd a
decade ago. And while some Tulsa metro area communities are approaching “built-out™ status, Bixby has
plenty of remaining land within its fence line to accommodate both additional residential growth and
significant commercial development, including along the Arkansas River.

Despite this growth, Bixby has retained a friendly, small town feel, with beautiful neighborhoods,
numerous churches, and many community amenities. In 2009, these factors led CNN Money.com to
select Bixby as one of its Best Places to Live in America, designating it one of America’s best small
towns. Commercial developers have likewise praised the City of Bixby for being “business friendly” and
easy to work with, citing the personal attention and access to city staff.

After conducting an extensive analysis of the City of Bixby's fiscal conditions and performance, last
spring the national rating agency Standard & Poor’s assigned an “AA”™ rating with stable outlook to
Bixby’s 2011 General Obligation bonds. Only one city in Oklahoma has a better G.O. bond rating.

14
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Bixby participates in the diversified Tulsa regional economy and labor market, which is recognized
nationally for its performance:

Greater Tulsa selected No. | place to live in the U.S. (Relocate America 2009)
No. 1 state for entrepreneurship (Kaufman Foundation 2010)

No. 1 metre for cost of living (Business Facilities 2010)

No. 3 state for corporate tax environment (Area Development 2010)

No. 4 state for employment (Business Facilities 2010)

No. 4 state for workforce development (Area Development 2010)

No. 7 Strongest U.S. metro economy (Business Week 2009)

®R e e o

Bixby is well connected to the state and regional economy via an excellent set of state highways and is
less than a thirty minute drive to Tulsa International Airport and downtown Tulsa.

Bixby’s percentage of citizens holding B.S. degrees or higher is very high, (at 38%, more than 2/3rds
higher than statewide average). Bixby has the highest median home values in the Tulsa Metro Region (at
$168,500, is 70% higher than the state as a whole). Finally, Bixby has the highest Per Capita Income in
the Tulsa Metro Region, (at $34,004, is 51% higher than state as a whole).

The Bixby Public Schools district is one of the fastest growing in the state, having this year alene
experienced over a 5% growth in student population. In 2010, voters approved by an overwhelming
majority a multi-year $62,000,000 bond issue, without raising taxes, for the construction and renovation
of school buildings. Two new schools are currently being constructed, an elementary school on 131st
between Garnett and 129th, and a new middle school on Mingo between 151st and 161st. This award-
winning school system boasts excellent state test scores and outstanding activity programs.

The 4,500 seat Spirit Bank Event Center regularly hosts world-class entertainment and numerous events
which attract visitors from throughout the region. A new 92 room Holiday Inn Express hotel opened last
year, it being the second hotel to open in recent years, and a new $20 million Class “A” 248 unit
apartment complex, Encore on Memorial, has now begun leasing. Further, a new Reasor’s grocery store
currently being constructed in north Bixby will be the finest in this successful regional grocer’s chain,
further expanding the choices available to residents.

Contacting the City's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If

you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance
Director's Office at P.O. Box 70, Bixby, OK 74008 or phone at (918) 366-4430.

Respectfully submitted,

Betty Koehn
City Treasurer/Finance Director
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Statement of Net Assets— June 30, 2011

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 4,227,786 3,671,367 7,899,153
Investments 20,461,337 4 577,802 25,039,139
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 613,877 1,193,207 1,807,084
Internal balances 128,516 {12B,516) -
Due from other governments 1,014,607 200,842 1,215,449
Capital Assets:
Land and construction in progress 22,243,498 1,398,491 23,641,989
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 33,102,600 40,908,569 74,011,169
Unamortized issuance costs 491,369 320,962 812,331
Total Assets $ 82,283,590 52,142,724 134,426,314
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,005,954 202,122 1,208,076
Accrued interest payable 70,357 76,789 147,146
Due to bondholders 40,200 - 40,200
Due to other governments 6,259 14,707 20,966
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 2,434 682 924,570 3,359,262
Due in more than one year 27,149,206 9,550,177 36,699,383
Total lighilities $ 30,706,658 10,768,365 41,475,023
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 39,327,088 32,409,023 71,736,111
Restricted by:
State statutes 4,978,146 - 4,978,146
Enabling legislation 1,639,600 516,455 2,156,055
Contractual 2,270,954 5,429,135 7,700,089
Unrestricted 3,361,144 3,019,746 6,380,890
Total net assets $ 51,576,932 41,374,359 92,951,291

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Statement of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2011

Functions/Programs
Primary governmant
Govemmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Streets
Culture and Recreation
Cemetery
Economic Development
Interest on Lang-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water
Wastewater
Tota! business-type activities

Total primary govemment

Program Revenue

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assels

Qgperating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Bugingss-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
3 2519743 $ 367,362 3 39,889 5 1,045,400 $  (1.067.092) 5 - $  (1.087.092)
4,995 892 877,006 451,543 - 13,667 343) - (3.667.343)
1,692 292 341,728 135,149 3,994,432 2,779017 - 2779017
830 560 25326 - 123,560 {681,674} - (681,674}
142 435 102,000 - - {40,435} - {40,435)
127,184 - - - {127.184} - (127,164}
09,596 - - - {809,596) - 809 596
11,117,702 1,713,422 626,581 5,163,392 {3,614,307} - (3.614,307)
4,636 674 5340,139 - 601,571 - 1,305,036 1,305,036
1,527.581 1,255,486 - 882,501 - 610,406 610,406
8,184,255 6,695,625 - 1,484,072 - 1,915,442 1,915,442
$ 17,281,957 $ 8,300,047 $ 626,581 $ 5,647,464 $  {3614,307) $ 1915442 $  (1,658,865)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Froperty laxes $ 2496271 3 - § 2488627
Sales and use taxes 7,211,857 - 7,211,857
Franchise taxes and public service taxes 792,461 - 792,461
Hotel/motel taxes 98,096 - 98,09
ES11 taxes 147 520 - 147,520
Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs 124,622 - 124,622
Urrestricted investment earnings 107,141 39594 146,735
Miscellaneous 1,348 763 150,305 1,499,068
Transfers (1,864,281} 1,864,281 -
Total general revenues and transfers 10,462,450 2054,180 12,516,630
Change in net assels 6,848,143 3.969.622 10,817,765
MNet assets - beginning 44,728,789 37,404,737

Net assets - ending

§ 51576932 § 41,374,358

82133526
951,

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivable from other governmants
Due from other funas
Taxes receivable. net
Court fines receivable. nat
Ambulance receivable. net
Other receivables
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll payable

Due to other funds

Due to bondholders

Payable to other governments

Deferred revenue

Other payabies

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilitles and fund balances

Total
r All Debt Service Qther Governmental Governmental

General fund Fund 2008 Bond Fund 2011 Bond Fund Fund Funds Funds
] 829,811 $ 38415 5 453,204 $ 99,072 $ 365,806 5 2,902,314 % 5.008.722
1.987 476 1,010,614 3,442 879 4,800,000 1,414,687 7.024.318 24,660,475
813,147 28,939 - - 16,184 567,179 1.215.449
96,323 - - - 10237 1.188.368 1.295.828
61,255 - - - - 28923 00.178
453.814 - - - - - 453.6814
7.033 - - - - - 7.033
34.201 - - - 2206 26445 B2.852
$ 4,063,660 $ 1,397,968 % 3.896,083 3 9,898,072 5 1,809,120 ] 11,728,648 $ 32.794,451
s 116,796 % 11,665 $ 544112 3 48,330 $ - S 212,486 $ 933,339
142,705 - - - - 12,848 155,553
128,421 - 792,209 - - 91.043 1012673
40.200 - - - - - 40,200
6.258 - - - - - 6.259
408,754 - - - 18.744 2,850 430,348
10,197 - - - - - 10.197
854,332 11,663 1.336,321 48,330 18.744 318,227 2,586,619
- 1.372.813 2.519,762 9,850.742 1.770,108 9.908,347 25421772
2.321.781 13,490 40,000 - 20,268 1,500,974 3.896.513
887,647 - - - - - 887.547
3.209.328 1,388,303 2,559 762 §.850.742 1.780.376 11,408,321 30.205.832
$ 4,063,860 3 1.397.968 3 3,896,083 3 9.899,072 s 1,809,120 3 11.728.548 3 32.764.451

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Ended June 30, 2011

Changes in Fund Balances — Year

Debt Othgr Total_
Stregt & 2011 Bond Servica Goverpmental Governmental
General Fund Allgy Fund 2008 Bond Fund Fund Fund Funds Fynds_
REVENUES
Proparty taxes 5 - $ - $ - § - § 2.493.824 - $ 2403824
Sales and use tax 3,865,287 135.148 - - - 3,248,570 7,347,006
Franchise and miscellaneous taxes 792,461 - - - - 245616 1,038077
Intergovernmental 614452 1,268,154 - - - 1,350,826 3,173 442
Licenses ang permits 356,967 - - - - - 356,967
Charges for services 261,251 - - - 20,268 936,385 1,217,904
Fines & forfeitures 638,095 - - - . - 638,085
Investment earnings 13151 13,450 23,285 16,329 11,431 56,551 134,241
Miscellansous 282 922 4,800 - - - 288,001 575723
Total revenues 6,924 596 1,361,593 23,289 18,329 2,525,523 6,123 949 16 875,279
EXPENDITURES
Adrninistration 440,448 - - - - - 440,448
City attorney 48,385 - - - - - 48 385
Municipal court 92,800 - - - - - 62 800
Community service 4,367 - - - - - 4,367
General government 844,555 - - 193,185 - - 1,037,740
Police 2,453,874 - - - - - 2,453,874
Fire 1,671,418 - - - - - 1,871,415
Emergency Management 23,408 - - - - - 23.408
Streats 492,499 215142 - - - 321,151 1,028,792
Culture and recreation 16,030 - - - - 652,155 668,185
Cemetery 132,463 - - - - - 132,463
Economic development - - - - - 124,205 124,205
E-$11 - - - - - 66,715 66,715
Water and sewer - - - - - 3,062 3,082
Capital outlay 146,039 2,310,579 1.824,669 5.835 - §21,223 5,208,345
Debt service:
Pringipal 20,684 - - - 1,950,000 436,626 2407310
Intarest and other charges 5,452 - - - 791,750 21379 818,581
Total expenditures 6,592,419 2,525721 1,824 669 199,020 2,741,750 2 548,506 16,430,085
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expanditures 332,177 1,164,128 (1,801,380) {182,691} (216,227) 3,577,443 345194
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt, net - - - 10,075,928 - - 10,075,928
Proceeds from capital leasas 135,539 - - - - - 135,539
Transfers in 86,498 - 600,681 - 1,010,065 1,249,122 2,926,366
Transfers gut {140,000) - {331,703) {42,455) - (3,616,388} (4,132,586)
Totat other financing sources and uses 62,037 - 268,978 10,033,433 1,010,065 {2,369, 266} 8,005,247
Net change in fund balances 394,214 (1,164,128) (1,532,402) 9,850,742 793,838 1,208,177 9,550,441
Fund balances - beginning 2,815.114 2,550,431 4,092,164 - 996,538 10,201,144 20,655,391
Fund balances - ending $ 3,209,328 $ 1,386,303 $ 2,558,762 $ 9,850,742 § 1,790,376 11,409,321 § 30,205.832

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Total fund balance, governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in this fund financial stalement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement
of Net Assets.

Certain other long-term assets are not available te pay current period expenditures and therefore are not
reported in this fund financial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement
of Net Assels.

Unamortized bond issuance costs

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are
deferred in the funds.

Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type actvities. The assets
and liabilities of these special revenue funds are included in business-type activities in the Statement of
Net Assets.

Water and Sewer Development Fund
Citizen's Planned Fund

30,205,832

55,346,008

491,369

430,348

(1,569,301)
(3,673,169)

(5,242,470)

Some liabilities (such as Notes Payable, Capital Lease Contraci Payable, Long-term Compensated
Absences, and Bonds Payable ), are not due and payable in the current period and are not included in
the fund financial statement, but are included in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net
Assets.

Accrued interest payable

Capital lease obligation

General obligation bonds

Bond premium

Accrued compensated absences

(70,357)
(555,407)
(28,250,000)
(75,476}
(703,005)

(29,654,245)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets

51,576,932

See accomparnying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ 9,550,441

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets and bond issue costs as expenditures because
such outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of Activities reporls only a
portion of the outlay as expense. The outlay is allocated over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense for the period.

Capital asset purchases capitalized 5,176,234
Capital assets contributed 3,823,846
Depreciation expense (2,426,394)
Book value of disposed capital assets (12,500)
6,561,186

Governmental funds report bond issuance costs as expenditures while governmental activities
report amortization expense to allocate those expenditures over the term of the bonds:

Amortization expense (33,186)
Bond issuance costs capitatized 193,150
159,954

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds:
Deferred revenue {210,546)

Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type activities. The
net change in fund balances of these special revenue funds are included in business-type activities
in the Statement of Net Assets:

Water and Sewer Development Fund {711,831}
Citizen's Planned Fund {686,686)
(1,398,517}

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net

Assets:
Principal payments on long-term debt 2,407,310
Proceeds of long-term debt (10,135,539)
Bond premium (75,928)
Amortization of bond premium 452
{7.803,705)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and these are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
Change in accrued interest payable 8,336
Change in accrued compensated absences {13,006)
(10,670)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 6,848,143

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2011

Bixby Public_
Works Authority
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 722,515
Investments 222,845
Restricted:

Cash and cash equivalents 234
Due from other funds 134,355
Accounts receivable, net 1,193,207

Total current assets 2,273,156
Non-current assets:

Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,214,945
Investments 1,108,556
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 1,398,491
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 40,908,569
Unamortized issue costs 320,962
Total non-current assets 44,951,523
Total assels $ 47,224,679
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 79,480
Salaries payable 29,457
Accrued interest payable 76,789
Due to other funds 417,610
Payable to other governments 14,707
Deposits subject to refund 46,753
Compensated absences 21,837
Notes payable 290,980
Bonds payable 565,000
Total current liabilities 1,542,613
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 87,347
Deposits subject to refund 420,759
Notes payable 3,802,855
Bonds payable 5,239,216
Total non-current liahilities 9,550,177
Total liabilities 11,092,790
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 32,409,023
Restricted for debt service 1,779,226
Unrestricted 1,943,640
Total net assets $ 36,131,889

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Year Ended
June 30, 2011

Bixby Public
Works Authority
REVENUES
Water b 5,073,514
Sewer 973,447
Miscellaneous 45,591
Total operating revenues 6,092,652
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 1,290,546
Water 3,041,645
Wastewater 365,198
Amortization expense 103,29
Depreciation 954,928
Total Operating Expenses 5,755,608
Operating income 336,944
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 12,494
Miscellaneous revenue 990
Operating grants and contributions 70,026
Interest expense {403,150)
Tolal non-operating revenue (expenses) {319,640)
Income before transfers 17,304
Capital contributions 1,347,581
Transfers in 2,155,342
Transfers out (949,122)
Change in net assets 2,571,105
Total net assets - beginning 33,560,784
Total net assets - ending 3 36,131,889

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Proprictary Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Total net assets, proprietary funds $ 36,131,889

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type actvities. The assets
and liabilities of these special revenue funds are inciuded in business-type activities in the Statement of
Net Assets.

Water and Sewer Development Fund 1,569,301

Citizen's Planned Fund 3,673,169

5,242,470

Net Assets of Business-type Activities in the Statement of Net Assets $ 41,374,359
Net change in net assets - total proprietary funds: $ 2,571,105

Amounts reported for Business-type Activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type activities.
The net change in fund balances of these special revenue funds are included in business-
type activities in the Statement of Net Assets:

Water and Sewer Development Fund 711,831
Citizen's Planned Fund 686,686
1,398,517

Change in net assets of business-type activities $ 3,969,622

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

Bixby Public
Works Authority

$ 5,698,938

Payments to suppliers (3,345,628)
Payments to employees (1,358,383)
Receipts of customer meter deposits 84,597
Refunds of customer meter deposits (84,290}
Interfund receipts (120,025}
Interfund payments (298,300)
Net cash provided by operating activities 576,909
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 2,155,342
Transfers to other funds (949,122)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1,206,220
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPI{TAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (1.396,969)
Proceeds from debt 547,307
Principal paid on debt {823,114)
Bond issuance costs paid (73,500}
interest and fiscal agent fees paid on debt {401,545)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (2,147,821)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 50,512
interest and dividends 12,494
Net cash provided by investing activities 63,006
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {301,686)
Balances - beginning of year 2,239,380

Balances - end of year

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:

$ 1,937,694

Cash and cash equivalents $ 722,515
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current 234
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent 1,214,945

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2011, (Continued)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
Operating Actlivities:
Operating income $ 336,944
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 954,928
Amortization expense 103,291
Change in assets and liabilities:
Due from other funds (120,025)
Due ic other funds (298,300)
Accounts receivable {394,604)
Accounts payable (31,181)
Accrued salaries payable 6,188
Deposits subject to refund 307
Accrued compensated absences 18,381
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 576,909

Noncash activities:
Contributed capital assets

Yy
=il

1,417,607
$ 1,417,607

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City’s financial reporting entity includes the primary government {City of Bixby) and the blended
component units as noted below. This annual report includes all activities for which the City of Bixby
City Council/Manager is fiscally responsible.

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” and includes all
component units for which the City is financially accountable.

The City of Bixby - that provides the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks and
recreation, and administrative activities.

The City of Bixby has a population of approximately 21,000 located in northeast Oklahoma. The City is
a Council/Manager form of government that provides for three branches of government:

¢ Legislative — the City Council is the governing body elected by the citizens

¢ Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council

¢ Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Council

The City provides typical municipal services such as public safety, street maintenance, culture, parks and
recreation.

Blended Component Units:
e The Bixby Public Works Authority — that operates the water and sewer services of the City.

This component unit is a Public Trust established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State law. Public
Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authority is generally created to finance City services
through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the City Council to
delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Authority. The Authority generally
retains title to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated
resources. In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for the Authority to the
Trustees on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trust, receives title to any residual
assets when a Public Trust is dissolved.

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting
Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The statements of net assets and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
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earned and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used.

Program revenues in the Statement of Activities are revenues that are derived directly from each activity
or from parties outside of the City’s taxpayers. The City has the following program revenues in each
activity:

e Public Safety — Fire, Police, Ambulance — fines and forfeitures, ambulance fees, fire run charges,
911 revenue and restricted operating grants.

e Streets — Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State and other restricted
operating grants,

o Culture, parks, and recreation — park usage fees, fishing license fees, operating and capital grants.
Cemetery — cemetery revenues
General Government — licenses and permits and restricted operating grants.

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even
if restricted for a specific purpose.

Governmental Funds:
The City’s governmental funds include:

Major Funds:

s  General Fund — accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds. Due
to the implementation of GASB 54, the General Fund also includes the Rural Fire, Fishing
License, Cemetery Beautification and Cemetery Maintenance accounts.

s Street and Alley Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for revenues received from gasoline
excise tax, motor vehicle tax and expenditures made for street maintenance and operations.

¢ 2008 Bond Fund - a capital project fund that accounts for bond proceeds used to finance parks
and street improvements.

¢ 2011 Bond Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for bond proceeds used to finance streets,
parks and recreation, and public safety improvements.

¢ Debt Service Fund — a debt service fund that accounts for receipt of ad valorem taxes and used to
make debt service payments for general obligation bonds.

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds:

s  Park Fund — accounts for % penny sales tax used to improve and maintain Bentley Park.

s  E911 Fund — accounts for revenues received from tariff rates on base line telephone
charges and expenditures for operations and maintenance of the E-911 system.

e Fry Creek Maintenance Fund — accounts for the ongoing maintenance of the Fry Creek
Channel.

s Economic Development Fund — accounts for revenues received from hotel lodging tax
and expenses to enhance the City’s ability to attract new industry to the area.
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Capital Project Funds:

¢ Cemetery Care Fund — accounts for 12.5% of cemetery revenue restricted by State law
for cemetery capital improvements.

* Capital Improvement Fund — accounts for % cent sales tax for capital improvements.

o (itizen’s Planned Fund - accounts for % cent sales tax restricted for sewer system
improvements and debt service,

* 2007 Bond Fund — accounts for bond proceeds used to finance parks and street
improvements.

¢ Stormwater Management Fund — accounts for revenues from stormwater fees and
expenses for maintenance and capital improvements of the stormwater system.

* Water and Sewer Development Fund — accounts for revenue from water and sewer
development fee and expenses for water and sewer maintenance and improvements.

Debt Service Funds:

* 2006 Debt Service Fund — accounts for %4 penny sales tax restricted for paying principal
and interest on general obligation bonds of the City.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and measurable and available to pay
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and payable from current
financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60 days of period end.

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level.

The General Fund, Street and Alley Fund, 2008 Bond Fund, 2011 Bond Fund, and Debt Service Fund are
considered major funds and are therefore displayed in separate columns. All other governmental funds
are considered non-major funds and are aggregated under the column titled Other Governmenta] Funds.
Proprietary Funds:

The City’s proprietary funds include:

Enterprise Fund

* Bixby Public Works Authority Fund that accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing
water and sewer services to the public.

The proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. For business-type activities and enterprise funds, Financial Accounting Standard
Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before
November 30, 1989, have been applied, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.
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For purposes of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, operating revenues
and expenses are considered those whose cash flows are related to operating activities, while revenues
and expenses related to financing, capital and investing activities are reported as non-operating or
transfers and contributions.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b
below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources™ measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. Only current financial
assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present
sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund
balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprictary fund utilizes an "economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery),
financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilitics (whether current or noncurrent) associated with
their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange
and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable
and available”". Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days of period end) to pay
current liabilities. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when carned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic
asset used.
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D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity
Cash and Investments

For the purposes of the statements of net assets, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, "cash and cash
equivalents” includes all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposits or short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Investments of the promissory note trustee
accounts are considered cash equivalents.

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market price.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues eamned at year-end and not yet
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise
taxes, ad valorem taxes, grants, police fines, and ambulance fees. Business-type activities report utilities as
its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such
as sales tax, franchise tax, ad valorem tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since
they are usually both measurable and available, Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are
deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the
government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment
earnings arc recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both
measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Ultility accounts receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of
accounts receivable.

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital assets. All capital
assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated
capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated historical
cost was used (o value infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002,

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided
over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. A capitalization
threshold of $1,500 is used to report capital assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as
follows:

- Buildings 10-60 years

- Machinery and Equipment 3-30 years
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- Infrastructure 5-60 years
- Other Improvements 5-60 vears

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally restricted as to their
use. The primary restricted assets are related to revenue bond trustee accounts and utility meter deposits.

Long-Term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in
the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists of notes payable, capital leases, general
obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The
debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as
expenditures. The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the
government-wide statements,

Compensated Absences

The City's policies regarding vacation, sick, and compensatory time permit employees to accumulate
varying amounts as determined by management and contracts with employee groups.

Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.
Governmental funds report only the matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating
employees.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide and Proprictary Fund Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,

mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.
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b, Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢.  Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested
in capital assets, net of related debt™,

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Since the City has implemented GASB
Statement 54, fund balance is further classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned. These classifications are defined as:

a. Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (1) not in spendable form
or (2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b. Restricted — consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or
(2) laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢. Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest
level of decision-making authority is made by ordinance,

d. Assigned — includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific purposes
but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund balance may be made by city council
action or management decision when the city council has delegated that authority. Assignments for
transfers and interest income for governmental funds are made through the budgetary process.

e. Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balance prior to the use of the unrestricted fund balance
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are
available. The City’s policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts require that committed
amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

E. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses
Sales Tax

The City presently levies a three and one half cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales
tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following
receipt by the Tax Commission. Two cents is recorded in the General Fund, three-fourths cent in the
Citizen’s Planned Fund, one-fourth cent in the Capital Improvement Fund, one-fourth cent in the 2006
Debt Service Fund, and the remaining one-fourth cent in the Park Fund.
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Sales tax resulting from sales occurring prior to year-end and received by the City after year-end have
been accrued and are inciuded under the caption “Due from other governments™. They represent taxes on
sales occurring prior to year-end.

Property Tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be
levied to repay principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt approved by voters and any
court-assessed judgments.

At the present time the City levies a property tax to fund the annual debt service requirements of
general obligation bonds outstanding,

The property tax levy, as determined by the City’s debt service needs, is submitted to the County
Excise Board for approval. County assessors determine the taxable value of real estate and
personal property in the County. A State Board of Equalization hears complaints on real estate
values with the power to equalize assessments. Under present State law, the ratio of assessed value
to true value cannot be less than 11 percent nor more than 13% percent.

Property taxes levied by the City are billed and collected by the County Treasurer’s Office and
remitted to the City in the month following collection. Property taxes are levied normaily in
October and are due in equal installments on December 31 and March 31. Property taxes unpaid
for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following October.
Property taxes levied, but not collected during the year or within 60 days of year-end are reported
as deferred revenue.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City’s net assessed valuation of taxable property was
$187,808,347. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valuation for the year ended
June 30, 2011 was $13.50.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to
capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds - By Character: Current (further classified by function)
Debt Service
Capital Outlay
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Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Non-Operating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

F. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of Net Assets
and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund
financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified.

Fund Financial Statements.

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported
as follows in the fund financial statements:

1. [nterfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as
interfund receivables and payables.

2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as
revenues and expenditures/expenses.

3.  Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds.

4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not
expected are reported as transfers in and out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial
statements as follows:

I.  Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund
receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities
columns of the Statement of Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

2. Internal activities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements
are eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities except for the net amount of
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as
Transfers - Internal Activities. The effect of interfund services between funds, if any, are
not eliminated in the Statement of Activities.
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G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures;
accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

For the purpose of the statements of net assets, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-term
investments with an original maturity of three-months or less and money market accounts.

At June 30, 2011, the reporting entity held the following deposits and investments:

Primary Government:

Carrying
Type Maturities Rating Value
Deposits:
Demand deposits § 6,743,836
Cash on hand 250
Time deposit Due within 1 year 25039139
31,783,225
Investments:
Goldman Sachs FS Tax Fund #0477 Aaa 14
Cavanal Hill Cash MG Fund #0051 Aaa 1,155,053
1.155.067
Total deposits and investments $ 32,938,292
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7.899.153
Investments 25,039,139

$ 32,938,292

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name, or collateralized without a written or
approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the
City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name,

The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral,
valued at no more than market value, at least at a level of 110% of the uninsured deposits and acerued

interest thereon. At June 30, 2011, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Investment Credit Risk - The City has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than
the limitation of state law as follows:

a. Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full
faith and credit of the U, S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full
faith and credit of the State is pledged.

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable
collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings
accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.

c. Federally insured certificates of deposit issued through the Certificate of Deposit Account
Registry Service (“CDARS™) by financial institutions located in the United States, provided that (i)
the funds are initially invested through a financial institution that is participating in CDARS (ii)the
financial institution received reciprocal deposits from customers of other financial institutions in an
amount equal to the funds initially invested; and (iii) each such certificate of deposit is in an amount
that is eligible for full FDIC insurance coverage.

As noted in the schedule of deposits and investments above at June 30, 2011, all of the City’s
investments in debt securities were rated Aaa by Moody’s.

Investment Interest Rate Risk - the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - the City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer.  Since the City has all investments in certificates of deposit, government securities, or money
market accounts, there is no concentration of investment credit risk exposure.

Restricted Cash and Investments — The amounts reported as restricted assets of the proprietary fund
statement of net assets are comprised of amounts restricted for debt service, debt reserve, construction
purposes, worker’s compensation escrow and Public Works Authority customer utility deposits. The
restricted assets as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Current Noncurrent
Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents Investments
Series 2002 Revenue Bond Account $ 14 8 - $ -
Series 2002 Reserve Account - 476,111 -
Series 2001 Reserve Account - 323,549 -
Series 20011 Sinking Fund Account 9 - -
Series 2002 Sinking Fund Account 1 - -
Series 1994 Sinking Account 16 - -
Sertes 1994 Reserve Account - 355368 -
BPWA Debt Service CDs - 700,961
Worker's Comp Escrow 194 - -
Meter deposits - 59.917 407,595
Total $ 234 $ 1,214,945 $ 1,108,556
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3. Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist of customers utilities
services provided, both billed and unbilled, due at year end, reported net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts. The governmental activities receivables include fines receivables.

Less: Allowance Net
Accounts for Uncollectible Accounts
Receivable Accounis Receivable
Govennmental Activitics:
Franchise laxes s 61,255 $ - $ 61,255
Court fines 908487 {453.813) 4534 674
Ambulance fecs 26.789 - 26,789
Stormwater 260,445 - 26,445
Other laxes 44,714 - 44,714
‘Total Governmental Activities 5 1.067.6%) S (433.813) § 613,877
Business-Type Activities:
Utilities S 1,311,923 $ (118.716) % 1,193 207

4. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital Assets:

Capital assets consist of land, land improvement, construction in progress, buildings and building
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. Capital assets are reported at actual or

estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation,
For the year ended June 30, 2011, capital assets balances changed as follows:
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Governmential activities:
Capital asscts not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Intrastructure
Machinery, turniture and equipment
Total other capital assets at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery, furniture and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities;
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Onher capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, furniture and equipment
Infrastructure
Total other capital assets at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, furniture and cquipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Restated
Balance at Balance at
July 01, 2010 Addttions Disposals June 30, 2011

) 9.241.341 $ 1,045,400 $ - $ 10,286,741
8,262 859 4,253 443 559,545 11,956,757
17,504,200 5,298,843 559,545 22,243,498
4,485451 14,139 - 4,499,590
40.831,32¢ 3,356,881 - 44188210
8,761,913 $89,763 15,000 9,636,676
54,078,693 4,260,782 15,000 58,324,475
1,122,226 104,529 - 1.226.755
16,271,798 1,548,693 - 17.820.490
5,403,958 773,172 2,500 6,174.629
22,797,981 2,426,394 2,500 25,221 875
31,280,712 1,834,388 12,500 33,102,600
$ 48784912 $ 7.133,231 § 572,045 $ 55,346,098
$ 488.651 $ - b - b 488.651
1,793,347 804,453 1,687,960 909,840
2,281,997 804,453 1,687,960 1,398 491
1,503,905 - - 1,503,905
1,732,620 153,778 - 1,886,398
46,927,738 3,544,305 - 50,472,043
50,164,263 3,698,083 - 53.862.346
678,028 53,223 - 731,252
1,511,291 76.513 - 1.587.804
9,809,529 825,192 - 10,634,721
11,998,848 954,928 - 12,953,777
38,165,415 2,743,154 - 40.908,569
$ 40447412 ¥ 3.,547.607 § 1,687,960 $ 42,307,060

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as

follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government
Public safety

Strects

Culture and recreation
Cemetery

$ 1,063,131
577,369
624,567
151,381

9,946

§ 2,426,394
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5. Long-Term Debt and Debt Service Requirements

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the reporting entity’s long-term debt changed as follows:

Balance Balance Duc¢ Within
Type of Debt July 1, 2010 Additiens Deductions June 30, 2011 (e Year
Gowernmental Activities:
Gieneral obligation bonds $ 20,200,600 $ 10,000,000 5 1,950,004 $ 28,250,100 $ 1,950,000
Capital lcase pavable 877178 135,539 457,310 555,407 344,081
Accrued compensated absences (83,999 19,006 - 703,005 140,601
Total Gevernmental Aclivities $ 21,761,177 $10,154545 § 2407310 § 29508412 5 2434682
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue bonds payable 5 6,530,000 % - % 545000 8 5985000 % 565,000
Notes Pavable 3.824,641 547,307 27,113 4093838 290,980
Deposits Subject to Refund 467,205 307 - 467,512 46,753
Accrued compensated absences 90,803 18,381 - 109,184 21,837
Tutal Business-Type Activities 10,912 649 565,993 $23,113 10,655,531 924 570
Total Long-Term Debt $ 32,673,826 $10,720,540 § 3230423 % 40,163,943 § 3359252
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:
Governmental Activities:
Due within one year $ 2,434,682
Duc in more than onge year 27,149,206
lLess unamortized hond premium (75,476)
Total Governmental Activities Long-"T'erm Liabilities $ 29,508,412
Business-Type Activities:
Due within one year $ 924,570
1}ue in more than one year 4550177
Add back unamertized charge on refunding and discount 180,784
Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilites 5 10,655,531

Governmental activities long-term debt:

Capital Lease Obligations:

218,811 Jeasc obligation for the purchase of a 2001 Pierce Custom Contender, payable in annual
installments of $22.958 with an annual interest rate of 5.4%, final payment duc June 2014 S 61,871

$515,352 lease obligation for purchase of police cars, payable in monthly installments of $15,191 with
an annual interest rate of 3.74%, final payment dug September 201 1. 32,887

$457,601 lease obligation for purchase of 2008 Pierce Pumper, payable in monthly instaliments of
$10,256 with an annual interest rate of 3.5%, final payment due April 2012, 120,866

$561,649 lease obligation [or purchase of 2008 Pierce Pumper, payable in monthly installments of
$12,560 with an annual interest ratc of 3,5%, (inal payment due November 2012, 208,277

$1335.,5239 Icase obligation for purchase of 2 new mowers, payable in monthly installments of $2.508

with an aimnual interest rate of 4.25%, {inal payment duc April 2016. 131,506
Total Capital Leases Payable S 555,407

Current portion § 344081

Noncurrent portion 211,326

Total Capital Leases Payable b 555,407
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General Obligation Bonds Payable:

$540,000 General Obligation Bonds of 1997, due in annual installments of $40,00(} with an
annual interest rate between 4.85% and 7.75%, final payment due June 2012. $ 40,000

$4,010,000 General Obligation Bonds of 1999, due in annual installments of $21,000 with an
annual interest rate between 4,90% and 8.75%., final payment due November 2019, 1,910,000

$2,899,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2000, due in annual installments of $270,000 with an
annual interest rate between 4,60% and 8.0%, final payment due November 2(112. 560,000

$6,600.000 General Obligation Bonds of 2006, due in annual installments of $475,000 with an
annual interest rate between 3.70% and 5.50%, final payment due June 2021, 4,750,000

$7.000,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2007, due in annual installments of $50{0.000 with an
annual interest rate between 3.65% and 3.95%, final payment due June 2022, 5,500,000

$6,400,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2008, due in annual installments of $455.000 with an
annual interest rate between 3.00% and 4.10%, final payment due June 2023, 5,490,000

£10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2011, due in annual installments of $710,000 and a

final installment of $770,000 with an annual interest rate between 2.00% and 4.00%, final

payment due June 2026. 10,000,000
Total Notes Payable § 28,250,000

Current portion  § 1,950,000
Noncurrent portion 26,300,000
Total Notes Pavable $ 28,250,000

Accrued Compensated Absences:

Current portion 140,601
Noncurrent portion 562,404
Total Accrued Compensated Absences  § 703,003
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Business-tvpe activities long-term debt;
Notes Payable:

1998 CWSRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated November 18, 1998,
original amount of $4,938.787 with an annual interest rate of 3.22% due in semi-annual
installments of principal and interest beginning September 15, 2001, final installment due
March 15, 2021, payable from and secured by utility revenues. 3 2.763.170

2009 DWSRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated November 19, 2009,
original amount of 32,160,000 with an annual interest rate of 3.23% due in semi-annual
installments of principal and inferest beginning March 135, 2011, final installment due
September 15, 2030, payable from and secured by wtility revenues. 1,307,124

Revolving Note Payable to Oklahoma Departiment of Commercee dated June 30, 2001, original

amount of $69 466 due in monthly installments of $386, final instaliment due July 2016. 23,541
Total Notes Payable $ 4,093,835

Current portion $ 290980

Noncurrent portion 3,802,835

Total Notes Payable $ 4,093,835

Revenue Bonds Payable:

2001 Series Urility System Revenue Bonds original issue amount of $4,000.000, dated
November 1, 2001, issued by Bixby Public Works Authority, secured by certain utility revenuc
and pledged sales tax, and a sccurity interest in the personal property used in conjunction with
the water and sewer systems, interest rates from 2.00% to 4.85%. final maturity November 1,
2019, hY 2.330.000

2002 Refunding Series Utiliey System Revenue Bonds original issuc amount of $6,0080,000,
dated August 1, 2002, issued by Bixby Public Works Authority, secured by certain utility
revenuc and pledged sates tax, and a security interest in the personal property used in
conjunction with the water and sewer systems, interest rates from 2.45% to 7.00%. final

maturity November 1, 2019, 3,655,000
Total Revenue Bonds Pavable $ 5,985,000

Less: Unamortized Charge on Retunding (180,784)

Net Revenue Bonds Payable $ 5,804,216

Current portion § 565,000

Noncurrent portion 5,239.216

Total Revenue Bonds Pavable $ 5,804,216

Deposits subject to Retund:

Current portion § 46,753
Noncurrent portion 420,759
Total Deposits Subject to Retund 3 467,512
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Accrued Compensated Absences:

Current portion  § 21,837
Noncurrent portion 87,347
Total Accrued Compensated Absences  § 109,184

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity:

Governmental Activitics

Year Ending June 30, General Capital
Obligation Bonds Lease obligations
Principal interest Principal Interest

2012 $ 1,950,000 $ 993116 $ 344,081 $ 15900

2013 2,640,600 911,851 109,224 6,872

2014 2,350,000 829,379 48,999 4,060

2015 2,350,000 753.576 28,417 1,684

2016 2,350,000 677,095 24,680 476
2017-2021 11,560,000 2,171,983 - -
2022-2026 5,050,000 494,883 - -
Totals $ 28,250,000 $ 6,831,885 $ 555407 $ 28,992

Business-type Activities

Year Ending June 30, Revenue
Bonds Payable Notes Pavable
Principal Interest Principal Interest

2012 § 565000 % 247,720 § 290,980  § 110,737
2013 580,000 225230 300,761 102,477
2014 603,000 201,360 310,513 94,239
2015 635,000 175,958 320,586 85,729
2016 660,000 148,978 330,749 77,144
2017-2021 2,940,000 279,708 1,800,490 242,513
2022-2026 - - 360,858 80,859
2027-2031 - - 378,898 27.831
Totals $ 5985000 S5 1,278,954 § 4.093.835 $ 821,529
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6. Fund Equity

The city implemented GASB Statement 54: Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type

Definitions.

The following tables show the fund balance classifications as shown in the

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet in accordance with GASB Statement 54 and Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Assets:

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Sireets
Park-street improvernents

Major Dbt

Park-street-public satery improvements -

Debt service

Feonomic development

Bentley park

FYil

Frv creck

Cemetery capital

Capital improvements

Scwet system improvements

Starmwater system

Water and sew er mainlenance
Sub-total Resiricied

Assigned to

Subsequent vear budgel

Tunds due emplovees

Inclement weather contigency

Technoloey and systems

FY-12 workers' comp, increases

Litigation contingency

Economic developuent contingency

Transfers to other funds

Potential employee dividend

Sales tax rebate - Kegal Plaza

Juvenile court fines

Fishing activities

Cemetery maintenance

{Cemetery beautification

Streets

Park sireet tnprovements

Debt service

Bentley park

o1

Fry creek

Economie development

Capital inprovements

Sewer system improvements

Stormwaler system

Water and sewer maintenance
Sub-total Assigned

Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

Major Capital Project Funds Scrvice Fund Othey
Cieneral Street & ] 2008 | 2011 Dbt Service Governmental TOTAI
Fund Alley Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Fund Funds

- 1.A72.813 - - - - 1372813
- - 2819762 - - 792209 2311971
- 9830,742 - - H.850.742
177008 1.049.797 2560905
- - - 187,598 | 87508
- - - 264733 264732
- - - L] R 815463
- 451 85] 451851
- RT3 487222
- - - 649,909 A649.900
- - - - - 1.639.600 1.63% 600
- - - - - S1eA35 316435

- | 272813 2.519.762 9850742 17700108 Q808,347 2542177
89347 - - - R9.347
940300 - 94013060
100000 - - FCHY.NOH)
2000000 - - - - NIECEY
100000 - - - - 100000
S5.000 - - - 33000
200.001 - 200000
200.0000 - 200,000
35000 - - 23000
230000 - - - 220000
[000 - - - S0.000
65,295 - - - 45,293
LATR 1.373
36,400 - - - 30406
- 13400 - - - - 13400
- 40,000 - - .00t
- 20.26% 20,268
- - 37.634
- - - - 15723
- - - 202704
- - - - T3 TTNG
- - 14311 14511
- 22260 23,260
- F0.140 T30
- - - - - 1032 846 1,052,530
2321781 13490 40,000 - 20268 1500474 3896513
hE e ¥ - - B SRT.A47
S 220938 8 1386301 % 2550762 5 H850742 8 1790376 & 11409321 § 30,205 832

Enterprise Funds:

Restricted For Debt Service
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Net asset restrictions are as follows:

State Enabling Contractual
Statates Legislation Agreements Total
Governmental Activities:
Capital Projects:
Stormwater management $ - b 1,639,600 % - $ 1,639,600
Street and Alley Fund 1,372,813 - - 1,372,813
Capital improvement Fund - 2,270,954 2,270,954
Sub-total Capital Projects 1,372,813 1,639,600 2,270,954 5,283,367
Debt Service:
2006 Dcebt Service Fund 1,099,797 - - 1,099,797
Debt Service Fund 1,788,852 - - 1,788,852
Sub-total Debt Service 2,388,049 - - 2,888,649
Other
ES1 | Fund 451.951 - - 451,951
Cemetery Care Fund 264,733 - - 264,733
Sub-total Other 716,684 - - 716,684
Total Governmental Activitics 4,978,146 1,639,600 2,270,954 8,888,700
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bond Trustec Accounts - - 516,455 516.455
TOTAL RESTRICTED NET ASSETS $ 4,978,146 $ 1,639,600 8 2,787,409 b 9,405,155

Deficit Prohibition
Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance
in any individual fund. At June 30, 2011, the City reported no fund balance deficits.

7. Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers
The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers and balances in the statements of activities and
net assets to avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between
governmental and business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and internal balances
and then offset in the total column in the government-wide statements. Interfund transfers and
balances between funds are not eliminated in the fund financial statements.

Transfers:

Internal transfers between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2011 were as follows:
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Transfer From Transfer To Amonnt Purpose of Transfer

E9LI General Fund 5 60,000 Operations
CGieneral Fund 2008 Bond Fund 40,000 Reimburse expenses
{eneral Fund Economic Development Fund 100,000 Operations
Capital Improvement Fund 2008 Bond Fund 258,862 Reimburse expenses
Capital lmprovemem Fund Rural Fire Fund 6.49% Debt service
Citizen's Planned Fund BPWA R23.557 Debt serviee
Park Fund 2008 Bond Fund 17.500 Reimburse expenses
Stormwater Management Fund I'ry {reek Maimenance Fund 200.000 Transfer funding
Stonmwater Management Fund 2008 Bond Fund 250.000 Reimburse expenses
BPWA Water and Sewer Development 949.122 Reimburse expenses
Water and Sewer Development BPWA 73500 Reimburse expenses
Watcer and Sewer Development BPWA 72171 Capital asset purchases
2006 Debt Service Fund Debt Service Fund 1010065 Debt service
2011 Bond Fund Brwa 42,495 Capial asset purchases
2007 Bond Fund 2008 Bond Fund 14319 Operations
2008 Bend Fund BPWA 331703 Capital assel purchases
2007 Bond Fund BPWA 3100 Capital asset purchases
Water and Sewer Development BPWA 308.8 10 Capital assel purchases

Total 5 5.081.708

Reconciliation - BTA -
Special Revenue Funds

Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
Translers In

Reconciliation

Transters (ut Sales lax recluss Nel Translers

Governmental Funds 5 2.926.366 $ (4.132.586) b3 R28.922 % (1.486.983) (1864281
Proprietary Funds 2.155.342 (649,122) {§28.922) 1.486.983 1.864.281
b} S5.081.708 £ {3.081,708) $ - S - -

Balances:

Interfund receivable and payables at June 30, 2011 were comprised of the following:

Due From Due To Amount Nature of Balance
General Fund Stormwaler Management $ IR, 646 Ixpense reimbursement
General Fund Park Fund 1,689 Fuel usage and OMA
General Fund Capital Tmprovement Fund 14,000 Insurance settlement
Creneral Fund 2002 Revenue Bonds Fund 68,856 Correct deposit
EGll General Fund 13,810 Correet deposit
Meter Deposit BPW A 61.795 Meter deposits
Cemetery Mainlenance General Fund 2,401 Fuel usage and OMA
Cemetery Maintenance Cemutery Care Fund 30 Correct deposi
Water and Sewer Development Gieneral Fund 10,645 Split deposit
Economic Development General Fund 7,231 Correct payment
BPWA General Fund 62,141 Split deposil
RPWa Stormwater Management 118,967 Split deposit
BPFWA Water and Sewer Development Fund 164,470 Split deposit
BPWA Debt Service Fund 10,237 Split deposit
Stormwater Management Capital Emprovement Fund 58,423 Expense reimbursement
Stormwater Managemenl Waler and Sewer Development Fund 914 Correct deposit
Park IF'und Fishing License Fund 20 Correct deposit
2008 Bond Fund 2007 Bond Fund 792,209 Reclassification of reimbursements
Court Fund BPWA 3,704 Sphit deposit
Fishing [.icense Fund Rural Fire Fund 75 Correct deposit
Total ¥ 1,430,283
Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements: Reconciliation
Due I'rom ue To BTA - Special Revenue Funds Net Internal Balances
Governmental Iunds % 1,205.928 $ (1012673 $ {154,739 s 128,516
Proprictary Funds 134,355 (417,610) 154,739 (128,516}
Total h) 1,430,283 $ (1,430,283) $ - $ -
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8. Pledged Future Revenues

Sales Tax _and Utility Net Revenues Pledge - The City has pledged one cent {(or 28.6%) of future
sales tax revenues and net utility revenues to repay $4,000,000 of the 2001 Series Utility System
Revenue Bonds and $6,080,000 of the 2002 Refunding Series Utility System Revenue Bonds.
Proceeds from the bonds provided for the purchase or construction of water and sewer systems.
The bonds are payable from pledged sales tax revenues and net water and sewer utility revenues.
These bonds are both payable through 2019. The total principal and interest payable for the
remainder of the life of these bonds is $7,263,954. Pledged sales taxes received in the current year
were $1,982,644 and net water and sewer utility revenues were $1,395,163 for total pledged
revenues of $3,377,807. Debt service payments of $820,539 for the current fiscal year were 24.3%
of total pledged revenues for these bonds.

Utility Net Revenues Pledge — The City has also pledged the net water and sewer utility revenues
to repay the following notes payable: $4,938,787 of 1998 CWSRF and $2,160,000 of 2009
DWSRF Oklahoma Water Resources Board Notes Payable. Proceeds from the bonds provided
for the purchase or construction of water and sewer systems. The bonds are payable from
pledged net water and sewer utility revenues through 2021 and 2030, respectively. The total
principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of these notes is $4,891,823. Pledged
net water and utility revenues in the current fiscal year were $1,395,163. Debt service payments
of $397,944 for the current fiscal year were 28.5% of total pledged revenues for these notes.

9. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural
disasters. The City manages these various risks of loss as follows:

e General Liability and Physical Property — Covered through participation in Oklahoma
Municipal Assurance Group risk entity peol (1)

¢ Worker’s Compensation — Worker’s compensation is covered through participation in the
Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group risk entity pool (2)

(1) Liability Protection Plan

The basic insurance agreements cover claims against municipalities for all government functions,
utilities, and services covered in the Plan, These include bodily injury, property damage, wrongful
acts, personal injury, and related torts under the state tort claims law and federal civil rights laws.
All public officials, employees, services, and municipal functions are covered unless they are
specifically listed as exclusions in the Plan.

The title to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Group. In the event of termination of
the Group, such property shall belong to the then members of the Group in equal shares. Each
participating City pays all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation
in the Plan, and is responsible for its obligation under any contract entered into with the Plan.
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Reserves for claim losses include provisions for reported claims on a case basis and an estimate of
claims incurred but not reported limited by aggregate and individual loss levels as specified by the
Plan's reinsurance contracts. These credits, if any, represent contingent liabilities of the Plan if the
reinsurer was unable to meet its obligations under the reinsurance agreement.

The Plan's insurance agreements are reinsured for excess losses based upon the contract year. The
significant components of each reinsurance contract can be obtained from the Plan’s annual
financial report.

(2) Worker's Compensation

The title to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Plan. In the event of termination of the
Plan, such property shall belong to the then members of the Plan in equal shares. Each participating
city pays for all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation in the Plan,
policy or service established under the agreement establishing the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance
Group, and is responsible for its obligations under any contract entered into with the Plan.

Specific aggregate stop loss coverage is provided by Comp Source.

Reserves for policy and contract claims provide for reported claims on a case basis and a provision
for incurred but not reported claims limited to specific retention levels for each member as outlined
in the Plan’s reinsurance agreement.

The Plan worker’s compensation coverage is reinsured for losses in excess of respective retention
levels. The reinsurance agreement covers losses incurred within the effective period of the
agreement. Each Plan member’s liability for claims losses is limited to their individual retention
levels as outlined in the Plan’s reinsurance agreement.

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation:

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of
governmental operations. The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss
contingencies that may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad
valorem tax over a three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court
assessed judgment rendered against the City. While the outcome of the above noted proceedings
cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute
relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance
would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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Federal and State Award Programs:

The City of Bixby participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year.
In 2011, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs was material. The grant/loan
programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan. The
City has not been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. Any
liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

Non-cancelable Operating Leases.

The City has a lease with the City of Tulsa for the purchase of water. The lease is based on a
price per gallon. Purchases were approximately $2,571,000 during the year.

Construction Commitments:

The following construction contracts were outstanding and payable at June 30, 2011:

Amount
Project by Activity Qutstanding
Culture and Recreation § 35761
Streets $ 8,789,498
Water and Sewer Projects $ 937,510

11. Pension Plan Participation
The City of Bixby participates in four pension or retirement plans:

e Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) — a statewide cost-
sharing plan.

e Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing
plan.
Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan.

* Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund — an agent multiple-employer defined contribution
plan.

Firefighters' Plan:

Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 49-102, the City of Bixby participates in the statewide
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension
Board on behalf of both paid and volunteer firefighters. The paid firefighter contributes 8% to the plan.
The City 1s required by state law to contribute 13% per year per paid firefighter to the statewide plan.
The plan is funded by contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state
appropriations, as necessary.
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A copy of the Firefighters Statewide Pension Plan financial statements can be obtained from the
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension System, 4545 Lincoln Blvd. Suite 263, Oklahoma City, OK, 73105-3707,

Police Plan:

Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 50-102, the City of Bixby participates in the statewide
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System (OPPRS). The paid police person contributes 8% to the plan. The City is required by
state law to contribute 13% per year per paid police person to the statewide plan. The plan is funded by
contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary.

The OPPRS issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements, which can be
obtained from the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 1001 N.W. 63" Street, Oklahoma
City, OK, 73116-7335.

Employees Plan:

The City provides a pension benefit for all of its full-time employees with the exception of the police and
fire departments, through the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The
employee’s contribution rate is 3.5%. The City’s contribution rate is 16.5%. The plan is funded by
contributions from participating employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary.

A copy of OPERS f{inancial statements can be obtained from the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement
System, 2101 N. Lincoln Blvd., Room 580, Oklahoma City, OK, 73105,

Summary of Contributions - Cost Sharing Plans:

Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension Oklahoma Police Pension Oklahoma Public
and Retitement System and Retirement Systermn Employees Retirement System
Iiseal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Peregntage Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed Year Coniribution Contributed Year Contribution Contributed
2009 3 126,692 100%% 2009 5 121,054 100% 2000 % 202,551 100%
2010 3 129,707 100% 2010 S 137,583 100% 2000 3 315,455 1040%,
201t 5 120,467 100% 2011 S 131.369 100%, 2011 % 336,980 10401%

The state made on-behalf payments of $101,936 for the police pension system and $257,023 for the fire
pension during the current fiscal year. These are reported as both intergovernmental revenues and public
safety expenses.
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OMRF Plans:

The City has also provided for two defined contribution plans with the Oklahoma Municipal
Retirement Fund. The plan’s custodian is JP Morgan Chase Bank. According to state law, the
authority for establishing or amending the plan’s provisions rests with the City Council.

In both plans, the plan participant is the City Manager. In a defined contribution plan, benefits
depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, investment earnings, and forfeitures may or
may not be allocated to such participant's account. The City adopted variable funding plans
where the contribution rate may be varied from year to year by the employer.

In the first plan: The City Manager vests at service inception and is entitled to 100% of
contributions. The budgeted contribution rate for this plan was 2% of annual covered payroll.
The City Manager is permitted to make voluntary after-tax contributions which was 0% of annual
covered payroll.

In the second plan: The City Manager vests after 4 years from his hire date of May 22, 2010.
The budgeted rate was based on contractual terms where the City contributes 4.75% of the City
Manager’s annual base salary at the conclusion of each year served. The City Manager is
permitted to make voluntary after-tax contributions. No such election was made.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the following amounts related to both defined contribution
plans were:

Payroll for covered employees $ 178,432
Employer (City) contributions $ 10,442
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) — Year Ended June 30, 2011

General Fund

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts,
Budgetary Basis

Yariance with

Final Budget -

Positive (Negative)

Original Final
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: b 1,872,480 $ 1,872,489 $ 2,666,673 $ 794,184
Resources (Inflows):
Sales and use tax 3,795,529 3,795,529 3965287 169,758
Franchise and miscellancous taxes 759,400 759,400 792 461 33,061
Intergovernmental 198,076 198,076 255,503 57,417
Licenses and permits 307,500 307,500 348,424 40,924
Charges for services 242.000 242 000 224,491 (17,509)
Fines & forteitures 565,000 565,000 638,095 73,005
[nvestment earnings 15,000 15,000 12,622 (2.378)
Miscellancous 219,000 229,689 282,922 53,233
Transfer n 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
Total resources {Inflows) 6,161,505 6,172,194 6,579,805 407,611
Amounts available for appropriation 8,033,994 8,044,683 9,246,478 1,201,795
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Adininistration 453,239 453239 440,448 12,791
Attorney 48 810 48,810 48,385 425
Municipal court 81,893 85,393 92 800 (7,407)
Community scrvice 5,500 5,500 4,367 1,133
General government 991,135 976,135 844,555 131,580
Police 2,309,637 2,349276 2,362,438 (13.162)
Fire 1,702,173 1,702,173 1,654,392 47,781
Emergency Management 36,230 36,230 23,408 12,822
Streets 421,785 497285 492,499 4,786
Park 50,400 50,400 17,584 2816
Cemetery 56,050 58,550 59348 {79%)
Transfers out 66,762 100,000 100,000 -
Total Charges to Appropriations 6,223,614 6,362,99] 6,140,224 222767
lFund balances - ending M 1,810,380 $ 1,681,602 S 3,106,254 $ 1,424 562
Reconciliation to Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance:
Fishing [icense Fund Balance 65,295
Cemetery Beauufication Fund Balance 1,373
Cemetery Maintenance Fund Balance 36,406
‘Fotal General Fund Fund Balance $ 3,209,328

Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

1. The budgetary comparison schedule is reported on a GAAP basis using the modified accrual
basis with the exception of on-behalf payments made by the state related to firefighter and

police pension and capital lease proceeds.

2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Manager. All supplemental
appropriations require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations must
be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector.
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3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual basis as shown in the schedule below:

General
Fund
Total revenue - budgetary basis $ 6,579,805
On-behalf revenue 358,959
Capital lease proceeds 135,539
Total revenue - GAAP basis 3 7.074,303
Total expenditures - budgetary basis 6,140,224
On-behalf expenses 358,959
Capital lease expenses 135,539
Total expenses - GAAP basis $ 6,634,722

4. Inthe General Fund the City had a negative variance in the following departments:

General Fund — Municipal Court $ 7.407
General Fund — Police $ 13,162
General Fund — Cemetery § 798
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Combining Balance Sheet — General Fund Accounts — June 30, 2011

Fishing Cemetery Cemetery
General Rural Fire License Beautification Maintenance
Fund Account Account Account Account Total
ASSETS
Cash and ¢cash equivalents § 753054 § (75) $ 29,210 B 1,373 3 46,349 3 829.911
Investments 1,931,756 - 36,220 - - 1.967.976
Receivable from other governments 613,147 - - - - 613,147
Due from other funds 96,228 75 20 - - 96,323
Taxes receivable, net 61,255 - - - - 61,255
Court fines receivable, net 453,814 - - - - 453,814
Ambulance receivable, net 7.033 - - - - 7.033
Other receivables 34,201 - - - - 34,201
Total assets $ 3,950,488 ] - $ 65,450 $ 1.373 $ 46,349 $ 4,063,660
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 109,224 § - $ B0 $ - 3 7.492 3 116,796
Accrued payroll 142,705 - - - - 142,705
Due to other funds 126,895 - 75 - 2,451 129,421
Bue to bendholders 40,200 - - - - 40,200
Payable to other governments 6,259 - - - - 6,259
Deferred revenue 408,754 - - - - 408,754
Other payables 10,197 - - - - 10,197
Total liabilities 844,234 - 155 - 9,943 854,332
Fund balances:
Assigned 2,218,707 - 65,295 1,373 36,406 2,321,781
Unassigned B87.547 - - - - 887,547
Total fund balances 3,106,254 - 65,205 1.373 36,406 3,209,328
Total liabilities and fund balances § 3.050.488 5 - $ 65,450 $ 1,373 $ 46,349 $ 4,063,660

60



CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — General Fund
Accounts — For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Eishing Cemetery Cemetery
Rural Fire License Beautification Maintenance
General Fund Account Account Account Account Total

REVENUES
Sales and use tax $ 3,965,287 3 - $ - $ - 3 - $ 3,965,287
Franchise and miscellaneous taxes 792,481 - - - - 162,461
Intergovernmental 614,462 - - - - 614,462
Licenses and permits 348,424 - 8,543 - B 356,967
Charges for services 224,491 16,200 - 200 20,360 261,251
Fines & forfeitures 638,095 - - - - 638,095
Investment earnings 12,622 - 309 - 220 13,1514
Miscellaneous 282,922 - - - - 282922
Total revenues 6,878,764 16,200 8 852 200 20,580 6,924 596
EXPENDITURES
Administration 440,448 - - - - 440,448
City attorney 48,385 - - - - 48,385
Municipai court 92,800 - - - - 92,800
Community service 4,367 - - - - 4,367
General government 844 555 - - - - 844 555
Pclice 2,453,874 - - - - 2,453,874
Fire 1,871,415 - - - - 1,871,415
Emergency Management 23,408 - - - - 23,408
Streets 492 459 - - - - 492,499
Culture and recreation 14,4086 - 1,624 - - 16,03C¢
Cemetery 59,348 - - 150 72,965 132,463
Capital Qutlay 146,039 - - - - 146,039
Deht Service:

Principal 2,194 18,490 - - - 20,684

Interest and other charges 954 4,468 - - - 5,452
Total Expenditures 6,494,722 22,958 1624 150 72,965 6,592,419
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 384,042 {6,758) 7,228 50 (52.385) 332177
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from capital feases 135,539 - - - - 135,539
Transfers in 60,000 6,498 - - - 66,498
Transfers out {140,000} - - - - {140,000)
Totai other financing sources and uses 55,539 6,498 - - - 62,037
Net change in fund balances 439,581 {260) 7,228 50 (52,385) 394,214
Fund balances - beginning 2,666,673 260 58,087 1,323 88,761 2815114
Fund balances - ending § 3108254 $ - § 65295 $ 1,373 $ 36,406 $ 3,209,328

61



3NAIAG 1990

f ' | i t t f i f ! t t I
oy
—
8reeel’lL ¢ 2646601 § LEL'ELT $ 8128181 § 60226L % B9L'CLOE  § 91L¥'256 $ 1G8ISF % LLE06 $ e9'l20L ¢ resé0sz % 9zg'ggz ¢
LZE'60F L) 264'660°L 10’6951 OvL604 1 [N 681 CI9E £P0 205 156 LGy 96’44 E9'LE0L 90£'992 A
ViB'0G571 - 9727250t o0 - 09z'ez gyl - 9E6'LL 69°20C €571 6£9'25
1¥E'806°6 262°880°) SSP'9LS Q09'6E9°) 607264 606°6r8'C P 4 LGE'LGF - £98°818 €CLYIT 865481
LZTBLE - 0280} 9/6'801 - - £LE°9G - 1BE'ZL - BiZ¥l E8C'€T
0S8 - - - - - 0S8° - - - - -
£r0'LB - SPe'0L 2EE'65 - - - - LA - 0L8cL [oF4
SY8'CL - - - - - - - £80'7 - - 58401
agrzie 3 - kS SBLE6 $ 6E9'6F $ - & - g forA=iiel 3 - $ L90°E $ - 3 88 - ¥09'Ch S
grs'ezi'llL § LBL'660'L & LEL'ELO') 3 EETEE 60276 § 691°C.9E & 91 F'85% 3 156'Lsy  § 41E°08 g ZE9'120°1 § ¥es08z ¢ 928'69¢  §
KA - - Sz - - - - - - - -
£26'8C - - - - - - - 85Z'ch - G99'G1 -
BEE'BBIL - 8E'GIL £lgisL 80Z'¢BL - gerel 0s - - - 689°L
6217458 1¢6'98 - - - Zrg'00g LA - - - - FALR: ]
8LEFE0L 626'15¢ - EQF'SEZ'L - LOF'9rZe 2zz'002 £58°69¢ - 929'z88 65Y'PeL AFL'ETL
riezoec ¢ 1Z6'08Z  $ 48L'205°) £ SLLBEE $ - $ aT6'szT $ gze'ce 3 8¥0°Z8 $ 650722 $ 0061 $ 09%08 $ Lagh: T3 $
spung puUn J 8iAIag pung puny pung pun g pauuelg pung punjames pung pung pung 163 pungwpeg
[CIUBIUIGATS 1920 9002 awdo@Aaq Juswabruew PUOH L1002 A1) SjuswiAo du| Kiajemas JUBITOB AT SOUCLO)IIE RN
5L Temag 7 IaIEM 1O)EMII0NG Tendey EITTEE ) ELIRY T
pundg spund jaaload lende) Spungj anuaaay [enadsg

Sa3uR|eq puUn) pUE S9N

(Susuap) sexuR|Eq pPUMY 1RI0}
paubissy
pRIISTY
'seouURlEq puUng

SanUGEY (2901
anuaAal paLajag
Spuny 130 0} ang
ajgeAed jj01leg
ajqeAed sjunoaoy
'saniger
SFINVIVE ONNS ANY SIELTIEYIT

SJ9sSe |El0 )
SaqeAaIal JEYIO

12U "9|qeAladal SaXe |

SpUNy JAYI0 WOl ang

S)UBWLIAA0E JaUo Wos) 9|qeAladay
sjuBLLISaAL|

sjuslesinba yseo pue ysen
81388V

1107 “0f dunf — SPUn J {eJUIWUIIACY) 16[eWHON — JIJY§ JJUE[Bg] SUIUIqUO,)

1107 ‘0€ dunp papuy Jud A 3} J0j pue jo sy
LAOJdTH TVIONVNIA TVINNV
VINOHVTIO ‘A9XI4 40 ALLD



£9

LZE'60F b B 16660 % $ J0E'695' L £ OrL6041 H 602264 § BOL'EL9'E $ £¥0' 206 § [T SE6'LL $ ZEFIZ0 L S 20e'932  $ LET GFE 5 Burpua - saauejeq pung
¥rLLOZ 0L ¥1Z'909'L 041’158 9LL'0LS'T C8E°LSE EBP'986'C YL 19 BEE'BLY {iez'gey £9E 61 116'vPE 642 19¢€ BuwwBag - (noysp) ssaueleq puny
L2480ZL (217'908) LEgIL L {92£°008) (12168) 989989 BEEPEL Z95'EE 291'901 69Z°Z00°L 62812 (Zro'zes) saaue(eq punj U abueys jay
{99ZB9E Z) {590°010'L) {59€°5) 000 05y) 6Ly 71T .56€28] TROESHE) - 000001 000'00Z (006097 005 748) ST pue 522UN0s BujoueLl JBUL0 210 L
TEREBLOT) TG00 L) 18V ¥56) T000058) [T [PEFFTY To9t582) - - g Tono 09y 100G 287 10 SU3jSUBI |
ZLU6KTL - 77166 - - - - - 000 001 000007 . - U siajsuel |
1$38N) SIJUN0S DHIINYNIL HIHLD
E¥FL4SE SFIECS 961°LLL (92£706E] (25471) HATED 569 66 Z9S'EE 919 697208 GeE1g {265 +8) saunypusdye
18A0 $3NUBASI Jo (AouHayap) sSa0XT
HG oS T - L6¥'S YFZ 294 988" LY - bib'8id - S0Z'¥ZL 9468 9.5 219'9/9 saunypuadys eo)
£ZZLZ6 - SkrZ LSE'0ES 998" LY - 100727E - - - 6r0'L 692 ABRNG EVIED

6LE'LT - - - - - 64812 - - - - - sabieyd Jayo pue 1sasaj|

929°0EF - - - - - BELPEY - - - - 2881 |edioully
annag 1980
250 - 250 - - - - - - - - - JBM3s DUE IZBM
§1L'09 - - - - - - - - - 512'99 - 53
S02'rZs - - - - - - - GOC'P2E - - - JUBILAOBARD JNLOUOST
SG1'ZS% - - - 0z - - - - - - L= od cede] LOBR2u03) PUE SUNYNT)
151'12€ - - 18E°1EZ - - - - - F3L'68 - - [EETIS
S3ENUANIIX3
6F6'E21'9 8¥I'C0G £69'2ZL 898 LI FeL EFZOLE'L £ALBLLL 295'ce ZIE0CL ££0'288 £606FL 0EL'Z65 SanuaAgl {210
100882 N ¥ZLE0L €09'25 - - 000+ L - WeZe - - £er 08 SNOSUEJISISIN
[Eeiege 1o 861 U R LES'TH ¥l 09Z'c2 Lig zzo'e oY BRLZ €451 £89 SHUILIED JUBULISIAL]
G8E9E6 - Y85 BELLYE - - - ol - - - £5¥'GL samnses 10) sabieyn
9z8°0%E"L - G999 - - - 260'GEE - - 92688 - - [EIETENE ST
YISPT - - - - - - - 960'86 - 026 iti - 59X} SNOSUBIIPOSHL PUB asiyouBIy
0£5992'E $ 195'56p ) - % - % - $ €£86'98p'1 g 592892 % - $ - $ - % - 8 199°56F % XEj} 88N pue $3jeg
S3ANNIAIY

spungd puny 3IAIsg pungy pung pung pungj pufiy pung sien pung pung pun4 1163 puig ey
IEWSGRIIAGY W20 9002 WHRd01AG JuBwIewEN puog 1002 “PauGEld S,UeZRI0 “SHisweAcdw| TwawR) WewdD[FAET  TIUCURURR
TIDEC L T0MET ¥ 191 TPEAIL0IS TEndEy ETIEE ) ELRYF]
puny B spund yefoig esden Spung anuaaay |eredg
ARG )30

——
10T "0t 2unp
PIPU d83 X Y} 40 ] — SPUN ] [BJUIMUIIACS JOTEWUGN — 0UE[EE] PUN,] UI SOSUEY) PUE 'S3IN)IPUIdX ;] ‘SONUIAIY JO JUIWI)E)S SHTHIGI0)

1107 “0€ dung papuy Jea X d) 10J PUE JO Y
LAOdAd TVIINVNIA TVANNV
VINOHVTIO ‘AdXI4 A0 ALLD

| S L L . L .. .. L L | L 8 | S L S L. S



CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Schedule of Net Assets — Enterprise Fund Accounts — June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due frem other funds
Accounts Receivable, net
Total current assets
Nen-current assets:
Resiricted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Capital Assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets,net of accumulated depreciation
Unamortized note issue costs
Total non-current assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Payable to other governments
Deposits subject to refund
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Comgpensated absences
Deposits subject to refund
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Tetal non-current liabilities
Total liagilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Meter Deposit

2002 Utility
Revenue Bond
Constrution

BPWA Fund DAWES Fund Account Tota|
$ 702475 $ 4,743 5 15,287 13 - $ 722515
- 222,845 - - 222,845
220 - 14 234
65,499 - 68,856 134 355
1,193,207 - - - 1,193,207
1,961,401 227,588 15,297 68,870 2,273,156
1,155,028 59,917 - 1.214,945
700,961 407,585 - 1,108,556
1,363,491 - 35,000 - 1,398,491
40,402 487 - 506,082 - 40,908,569
320,962 - - - 320,962
43,842,929 467,512 541,082 - 44,951,523
45,904,330 695,100 556,379 68,870 47,224,679
79.480 - - - 79,480
29,457 - 29,457
76,789 - - 76,789
355,815 61.795 - - 417,810
14,707 - - - 14,707
- 46,753 - - 46,753
21,837 - - 21837
290,980 - 290 980
565,000 - - - 565 000
1,434,065 108 548 - - 1,542 613
87,347 - - - 87,347
- 420,759 - - 420,759
3,802,855 - - - 3.802 855
5,239,216 - - - 5,239,216
9,129.418 420,759 - - 9,550,177
10,563,483 529,307 - - 11,692,790
31,867 941 - 541,082 32,409,023
1,779,226 - - - 1,779,226
1,693 680 165,793 15,287 68,870 1,943,640
$ 35,340 847 5 185,793 [ 556,379 $ 68,870 $ 36131889
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Enterprise Fund

Accounts — Year Ended June 30, 2011

2002 Utility
Revenue Bond
Meter Deposit Constrution
BPWA Fund DAWES Fund Account Total

REVENUES
Charges for services:

Water $ 5,073,514 $ - - $ $ 5073,514

Sewer 973,447 - - 973,447

Miscellaneous 36,528 - 9,063 45,591

Total operating revenues 5,083,489 - 9,063 6,092,552
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 1,290,548 - 1,290,546
Water 3,041,645 - 3,041,845
Wastewater 365,198 - - 365,198
Amortization expense 103,201 - - 103,291
Depreciation 904,861 - 50,067 954,928

Total operating expenses 5,705,541 - 50,067 5,755,608

Operating income (loss) 377,548 - (41,004) 336,044
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 41,836 - 6 6852 12,494
Miscellaneous revenue - 90 - - 990
Operating grants and contributicns - - 70026 70,026
Interest expense {403,150} - - - (403.150)

Total non-operating revenue {expenses) {391,314} 980 [ 70,678 (315,640}

Income {loss) before transfers (13,366) 990 {40,998) 70,678 17,304
Capital contributions 1,347,581 - - 1,347,581
Interaccount transfers in 111,270 - - B 111,270
Interaccount transfers out - - (111,270) {111,270)
Transfers in 2,155342 - - 2,165,342
Transfers out {949,122) - - - (949.122)

Change in net assets 2,651,705 990 (40,898) {40,592) 2571105
Total net assets - beginning 32,689 142 164,803 597,377 109,462 33,660,784
Total net assets - ending 3 35,340,847 $ 165,793 556,379 ] 68,870 3 36,131,889
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule of Debt Service Coverage Requirements — Year Ended June 30, 2011

2001 & 2002
Utility Revenue Bonds

1998 & 2009
OWRB Notes

Gross Revenue Available for Debt Service:

Operating revenues ol leased systems (1) s 6,092,552 kY 6,092,552
Sales tax pledged 1,982,644 -
Total Gross Revenues Available 8.075.196 6,092,552
System Operating Expenscs (1 4,697,389 4,697 389
Net Revenues Available tor Debt Service ] 3,377,807 b3 1,395,163
Debt Service Requirements:
Average annual debt service - 2001 utility revenuc bonds $ 323,490 5 -
Average annual debt service - 2002 utility revenue bonds 476,112 -
Maximum annual debt service - OWRB prontissory note - 1998 CWSRI: - 326,168
Maximum annual debt service - OWRB promissory note - 2009 DWSRF - 102,686
Total Debt Service Requirements £ 799,602 $ 428,854
Coverage 422% 325%
Coverage Requirement 125% 125%
(1) Leased systems include water, sewer and administration thercof’
Schedule of Reserve Requirements
2001 Utility 2002 Utility 1998 OWRB
Revenue Bond Revenue Bond Note Payable
Balance in Reserve Account, June 30, 2011 $323,549 $476,112 $355,368
Required Balance of Reserve per Agreement 323,125 476,112 355,368
Excess ol Account Balance over Required Balance 5424 - -
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

February 15, 2012

Honorable Board of City Commissioners
City of Bixby
Bixby, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, (City) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated February 15, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a controi does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and comrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined ahove.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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City of Bixby
February 15, 2012

We also noted certain additional matters that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
February 15, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, and all
federal awarding and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyoene other than

these specified parties. :

CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

February 15, 2012

Honorable Board of City Commissioners
City of Bixby
Bixby, Oklahoma

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, (City) with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City of Bixby’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of
Bixby, Oklahoma's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City of Bixby, Oklahoma's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Bixby, Oklahoma complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2011.

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City of Bixby, Oklahoma's internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order {o determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, and to test and report on intemal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control over compliance.

67

Members of American Institute and Oklahoma Society of CPA's and Inpact Americas, an Intemnational Network of independent accounting firms
Serving Ouor Clicats Since 1960



City of Bixby
February 15, 2012

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal controi
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.

CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

68



oy

CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal Grantor/ Federal Program
Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA or Award Revenue Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Amount Collected Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Recreational Trafls Program 20.218 637,800 131,393 131,383
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 90,000 41,313 41,313
Sub-total U.S. Department of Transportation 727,800 172,706 172,706
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce:
CDBG 14.228 141,241 136,491 136,491
Sub-total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 141,241 136,491 136,491
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance §7.036 17,192 17,192 17,192
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 19,832 19,832 19,832
Sub-total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 37,024 37,024 37,024
U.S. Department of Justice:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Justice:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 3,145 3,145 3,145
Sub-total U.S, Department of Justice 3,145 3,145 3,145
Environmental Protection Agency:
Passed through the Oklahoma Water Resources Board:
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water Revolving 66.458 248,094 248,084 248,094
Sub-total Environmental Protetion Agency 248,094 248,084 248,084
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,157,304 $ 597,460 § 587,460

Note A - This schedule was prepared on an accrual (GAAP) basis of accounting consistent with the preparation of the

basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1.

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of the City of
Bixby.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Bixby were disclosed during
the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
“Report on Compliance with Requirements that could have a Direct Material Effect on each Major
Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133".

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for City of Bixby expresses an
unqualified opinion on all major federai programs.

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for City of Bixby required to be
reported in this Schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included: CDGB— CFDA No. 14.218 and Capitalization Grants
for Clean Water State Revolving Funds — CFDA No. 66.458.

The threshold used for distinguishing between Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Bixby did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

1.

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

1.

None
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Cklahoma

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2011

There were no prior year audit findings.
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